1: 27: 46 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 29, 2011
1:27 p. m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 1:27 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair

Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Ma Costello

M ke Doogan

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

David Guttenberg
Reggi e Joul e

Mar k Neuman
Tammi e W1 son

John J. Burns, Attorney Ceneral, Departnent of Law, Brian
Bj or kqui st, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Departnent of Law
Chris Poag, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Departnent of Law,
Senator G essel; Senator O son; Senator MQuire.

SUMVARY

SB 46

SB 46 was not
Commi ttee,

#sb46

BUDGET: CAPI TAL

i n possession of the House Fi nance
SO no action was taken.

SENATE BI LL NO. 46

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1

04/ 29/ 11 1:27 P. M



"An Act nmaking and anendi ng appropriations, including
capi tal appropriations and other appropri ations;
making appropriations to capitalize funds; and
providing for an effective date."

1: 36: 35 PM

JOHN J. BURNS, ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF LAW stated
t hat t he conti ngency | anguage in SB 46 was
unconstitutional. He stated that it was possible that the
Senate Finance Conmittee <could renobve that specific
| anguage. He stated that it was his responsibility to
uphold the constitution. He stressed that the principles of
governnment were grounded in the constitution.

1:39:41 PM

Attorney Ceneral Burns stated that the constitution
outlined the specific criteria for legislation. He pointed
out that the legislature had the power to override the
governor's veto. He pointed out sections in the capital
budget that upset the balance of powers in the Al aska
governnment. He stressed that the contingency |anguage was
unconstitutional. He pointed out that there was $104
mllion in spending related to grouped projects. He
stressed that the contingency |anguage restricts the
governor's constitutional rights. He stressed that the
governor is a state-wide elected official, and the
| egislators are only elected based on districts, he is
allowed to veto. He also pointed out that the |egislature
has the power to over ride the governor's veto.

1: 43: 02 PM

Attorney General Burns stated that the power and authority
to appropriate funds are assigned to the legislature. He

pointed out that a disruption of these rights is
unconstitutional. He explained that linking projects
together wth contingency |anguage would usurp the

governor's line-item veto power, and would upset the checks
and bal ances that constrain the two branches of governnent.

1:46: 14 PM

Attorney Ceneral Burns stressed that the risk of litigation
woul d j eopardi ze the funding of energy projects. He pointed

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/ 29/ 11 1:27 P. M



out that no project could rely on noney, if the state
fundi ng was uncertain.

1: 48: 56 PM

Attorney General Burns stated that the confinenent clause
decl ared t hat t he conti ngency | anguage was
unconstitutional. He referred to a ruling in the Know es
vs. Legislative Council case.

Attorney General Burns stated that I|inking appropriations
was unconstitutional and felt that the capital budget's
unconstitutional |anguage should be renoved.

1: 51: 58 PM

Representative Gara pointed out that the legislature's
| awyers had expressed a different opinion. He stated that
he had shared a conversation that he had with Attorney
General Burns. He stated that the senate had their reasons
for including the language in the bills. He stressed that
the Senate wanted specific projects, and wondered if the
Attorney General would be available to nediate the
conflict, and try a list of projects that everyone could
agree on. Attorney Ceneral Burns explained that he would
al ways be of assistance. He pointed out that there was an
i mportant process. He felt that decisions should not be
made behi nd cl osed doors, and encouraged the legislature to
make cl ear open conversati ons.

Co-Chair Stoltze stated that the term "veto-power" was
consi dered "inside baseball talk."

1:56: 47 PM

Representative Gara pointed out that the governor does not
openly discuss what projects he will veto. He explained
that the constitution allows for the governor to encourage
the House and Senate to solve their issues. He asked that
the Attorney General work with the governor to detern ne
the nost val uable energy projects. He pointed out that the
governor was not open about his choices, and hoped that the
governor would be in nmore conmmunication with all parties.
He al so pointed out that the legislature did have the power
to override the governor's veto.

1:59: 34 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 29/ 11 1:27 P. M



Representative Costello felt that the struggle was with the
| inkage of the projects SB 46. She stressed that that was
the main issue that the House was dealing with. She pointed
out that there could be a concern in later budgets wth
| i nkage | anguage. She wondered if the capital budget was
creating a new law by linking energy projects together.
Attorney General Burns stated that the point of the
confinement provision was to keep the <capital budget
focused on appropriations, not on legislation and creation
of new |law. He stressed that that was the current concern.

2: 02: 55 PM

BRI AN BJORKQUI ST, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF
LAW stated that there was not one state energy plan. He
pointed out that many state agencies were working on a
energy plan, but there was not one state energy plan. He
stated that the intent |anguage in section 4 of SB 46
referenced the statutory energy plan, and spoke to hel ping
communi ti es devel op an energy plan.

=)

Representative Costello pointed out that there was a
hi story of |anguage assigned to a line item M. Bjorkquist
stated that the legislature can set forth intent |anguage,
as long as the |anguage does not restrict the governor's
constitutional right to veto a line item He pointed out
that the governor could not veto |anguage. He could only
veto a line item

2: 06: 38 PM

Vi ce-chair Fai r cl ough poi nt ed out t hat she was
unconfortable with the contingency |anguage. She supported
energy solutions that help benefit Al aska. She explained
that the neeting was held in Anchorage because there were
too many "sound-bites thrown around of the good and bad of
the capital budget." She pointed out that there was sone
contingency | anguage that had been supported in the courts,
and requested a conversation about why this specific
| anguage was unconstitutional. Attorney Ceneral Bur ns
agreed with Vice-chair Fairclough, and stressed that the
real problem was regarding the contingency |anguage that
was tied with a particular Iline-item M. Bjorkquist
pointed out that the Al aska Suprene Court defined an item
of appropriation to be a sum of noney dedicated to a
particul ar purpose. The intent |anguage was nmeant to be the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/ 29/ 11 1:27 P. M



m ni mum  nunber of words necessary to explain the
| egislature's intent for a specific appropriation.

2:13: 04 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough referred to a conversation about
creating a "nouse-trap" with contingency and non-
severability | anguage. She stressed that if the |egislature
canme together to fund the projects. She wondered if there
was a |legal challenge needed, or if the |inkage would be
al l oned and would withstand a constitutional challenge. Co-
Chair Stoltze agreed with Vice-chair Fairclough. Attorney
CGeneral Burns pointed out that the purpose of the "nouse
trap” was to pull away power from the governor stated that
the | anguage had been fully reviewed, and the intent of the
tying of projects was for the purpose of depriving the
governor of his line-item veto power. He stressed that if
the Senate Finance Commttee decided to keep the contended
| anguage in the bill, the Judiciary branch would get
i nvol ved.

2:16: 42 PM

Representative Edgnon referred to intent |anguage which was
non- bi ndi ng, and wondered if the |egal challenge mght not
be as strong, because the contingency |anguage m ght be
considered intent |anguage. He wondered iif it would
underm ne the clause. M. Bjorkquist stated that if the
intent |anguage was attenpting to create substantive | aw,
it would be considered unconstitutional. He continued that
there was not an energy plan in existence, so the
contingency |anguage created an energy plan. He stressed
that it was a violation of the confinenent clause.

2:20:10 PM

Representative Edgnon he pointed out that the budgets
passed during session are very critical to the state, but
specifically to rural Alaska. He stressed that the capita
budget did not need to be passed before the end of the
| egi slative session according to the constitution, and
asked for confirmation. Attorney General Burns affirnmed
that the capital budget did not need to be passed before
the end of the session.

2:20: 48 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 29/ 11 1:27 P. M



Representative Doogan pointed out that Attorney GCeneral
Burns had stated that there could be a third party com ng
in to invalidate the budget, if the bill was witten with
the contingency |anguage. He wondered if that had ever
occurred in the past. Attorney Ceneral Burns replied that
this would be the first tinme that this specific approach
was used.

2:23:36 PM

Representati ve Doogan wondered if assigning Village Public
Safety Oficers to a specific location would violate the
governor's authority. CHRIS PQAG ASSI STANT  ATTORNEY
GENERAL, COMVERCI AL/ FAIR BUSI NESS SECTION, ClVIL DIVISIO\W
JUNEAU, DEPARTMENT OF LAW was not aware of an instance
where there was a challenge to a contingency that |inked
t oget her numerous appropriation itens. He expl ained that
there were sone legal challenges where public interest
litigants challenged appropriations as a violation of the
dedi cati on cl ause.

2:28: 08 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze commented that his presence in the process
allowed for lengthy litigation limting projects. He would
be surprised if there was not |litigation against the
Susitna project. He felt that there were many possibilities
for people to attenpt to litigate the potential for oil
exploration. Attorney CGeneral Burns agreed.

Co-Chair Stoltze and Attorney Ceneral Burns had a
conversation about how litigation against capital budget
deci sions could be brought forward by anyone.

2:31:16 PM

Representative GQuttenberg recalled coments about state
energy policy. He felt that there was a broad state energy
policy, and felt there was nuch effort regarding organizing
an energy policy. He wondered why it would not be
constitutional for the legislature to appropriate noney to
a single organized energy policy within the budget. M.
Bj orkqui st responded that the program of the state energy
plan, and stated the legislation regarding energy policy
was nerely a statenent of goals that the state agencies had
been striving for. He stressed that the energy policy was
not a program

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 29/ 11 1:27 P. M



Representative Quttenberg pointed out that the policy had
been created by the legislature, and if the |egislature
passed the list of projects, then the energy policy would
be state-inpl enented.

2:34:30 PM

M. Bjorkquist stated that an appropriation bill cannot
i nclude substantive |aw. Representative Quttenberg asked if
SB 46 violated the law. M. Bjorkquist responded that the
senate's attenpt is to link the projects and call them a
state energy policy.

Representative GQuttenberg wondered if the opinion of
Attorney Ceneral Burns is the |aw

Co-Chair Stoltze interjected that Attorney General Burns
represented the | aw.

2:37:27 PM

Attorney General Burns agreed that he is not a nenber of
the judiciary branch in the context of the present law. He
stressed that the point of view that he was presenting was
t he opi nion of the Departnent of Law.

Representative Gara stated that many different actions
m ght be considered unconstitutional. He nentioned that he

was the forner assistant to the attorney general. He
expressed concern regarding |leaving Juneau wthout a
capi tal budget, because many projects in the bill were good

projects that may save consunmers noney. No energy package
and no weatherization funding mght |eave people wthout
t he capital budget.

Co-Chair Stoltze stated that the bicaneral process neans
that both | egislative bodies nust approve the budget.

2:43: 01 PM

Attorney GCeneral Burns shared concern about the capital
budget. He understood the inportance. He wanted to make
sure that the process occurred appropriately. H's conments
were just an opinion of the Departnment of Law. Utimately
the decisions would be made by the Judiciary Branch. The
consensus of the Departnent of Law is that the |anguage is
unconsti tutional .

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/ 29/ 11 1:27 P. M



2:44:57 PM

Representative Gara stated that the opinion of the Attorney
General is only an opinion just as that of Legislative
Legal departnent was only an opinion. The judiciary branch
hol ds the force of |aw

M. Poag recomended the renoval of section 37. Co-Chair
Stoltze is not in the condition to renpbve section 37,
because the House Finance Commttee was not in possession
SB 46.

Vice-chair Fairclough appreciated the recomendation of
Attorney General Burns, but her position is not to say what

good policy was for the Senate. Should the bill cone over
from the senate, the governor has the ability to reduce or
remove a project. She stressed that conprom se was

requi red, and stated that she would be happy to conprom se
if she had a bill in her hand.

Co-Chair Stoltze stated that the "nouse is maybe a rabid
rat."”

2:52: 30 PM

Representative Joule discussed the necessity of a capita
budget for the state. If it is a project in rural Al aska,
the inportance is for work for Al askans and materials
purchased |ocally. Those capital projects becone a way to
get people through a training process. The best form of
welfare is a job, and nmany projects weretied to that. So
much was presented in the rural areas, and he hoped that
the issue was resolved before the |oss of another season to
shift materials. He expressed the information obtained by
the | egal community.

Co-Chair Stoltze stated that they will all head back early
nor ni ng. He appreciated the nenbers com ng.

2: 55: 58 PM

Attorney Ceneral Burns stated that he remai ned hopeful that
t he contingency |anguage woult be renoved before noving to
t he House. He understood that the CGovernor would evaluate
each project on the nerits of the projects.

2:58:01 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 29/ 11 1:27 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze credited three senators present as SENATOR
MCGUI RE, SENATOR OLSEN, and SENATOR GEl SSEL.

SB 46 was not in possession of the House Finance Comittee,
SO no action was taken.

#
ADJ OQURNMENT
The neeting was adjourned at 2:58 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 29/ 11 1:27 P. M



